
WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION 
Bi-Monthly Meeting of the Board of County Road Commissioners 

December 4, 2018 – 1:00 p.m. 

Washtenaw County Road Commission Boardroom    555 N. Zeeb Road    Ann Arbor, Michigan  48103 

AGENDA 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
II. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
III. PUBLIC HEARING – Road Commission 2019 Budget 

 
IV. ACCEPTANCE OF MINUTES (Action) ................................................................. Page 1-13 

A.  Board Meeting Minutes of November 20, 2018 
B.  Working Session Minutes of November 20, 2018 
 

V. PUBLIC COMMENT 
This is the time set aside on the agenda to receive comments from the public.  This is not 
intended to be a period for dialogue.  Each person will be allotted (3) minutes to address 
the Board. 
A. Public Comment 
B. Written Communications ............................................................................... Page 14-25 

 
VI.  NEW BUSINESS 

A. Consent Agenda ......................................................................................... Page 26-58 
1. Road Commission – 2018 Final Budget Amendments 
2. Payroll & Bills for November 14, 2018 

 
B.  Action Items 

1. Road Commission 2019 Annual Budget 

 
VII. REPORTS .......................................................................................................... Page 59-67 

A. County Commissioner Report 
B. Road Commissioners Report 
C. Managing Director Report 

1. Staff Report of 11-12 to 11-25-18 
2. Michigan Transportation Fund Receipts 

 
 

VIII. ADJOURNMENT 
 



    WASHTENAW COUNTY BOARD OF ROAD COMMISSIONERS 

555 North Zeeb Road, Ann Arbor, MI  48103 

Minutes of November 20, 2018 

Board Present: Road Commissioners Douglas Fuller, Barbara Fuller, Rodrick Green 

Staff Present: S. Siddall, J. Harmon, M. MacDonell, D. Ackerman, C. Ryan, B. Schlack,
E. Kizer

Others Present: R. Jamnick 

The meeting was called to order at 1:00 p.m. by Douglas E. Fuller, Chair.  The Pledge of 
Allegiance was recited. 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

RC18-362 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded to approve the agenda as presented.   
Voice Vote:  YEAS:  3   NAYS: 0   ABSENT: 0   ABSTAIN: 0   Motion Carried. 

ACCEPTANCE OF THE MINUTES 

RC18-363 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded, the Board hereby approves the Board Meeting 
Minutes of November 6, 2018 as presented.  Voice Vote:  YEAS:  3   NAYS: 0   
ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0   Motion Carried. 

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 

ISSUED: November 15, 2018 
WHERE: Ellsworth Road between Oak Valley Drive and Plaza Drive 
TOWNSHIP: Pittsfield 
WHY: Permit work – sanitary sewer repairs 
WHEN: Friday, November 16th 
CONTACT: Craig Lyon, Utilities Department Director 

ISSUED: November 15, 2018 
WHERE: Moon Road between Willis Road and Bemis Road 
TOWNSHIP: York 
WHY: Shoulder work 
WHEN: Wednesday, November 14th 
CONTACT: Mike Bernbeck, Project Manager 

DRAFT

(1)



RECEIVED: November 7, 2018 
FROM: County Road Association Self-Insurance Fund (CRASIF) 
WHY: WCRC listed on the CRASIF Risk Control Honor Roll for 2018 
 
ISSUED: November 7, 2018 
WHERE: Sager Road between Klinger Road and Fletcher Road 
TOWNSHIP: Lima 
WHY: Guardrail Installation 
WHEN: Wednesday, November 7, 2018 
CONTACT: Brent Schlack, Assistant Director of Engineering 
 
ISSUED: November 7, 2018 
WHERE: Moon Road between Willis Road and Bemis Road 
TOWNSHIP: York 
WHY: Road resurfacing – Moon Road closed 
WHEN: Thursday, November 8th 
CONTACT: Mike Bernbeck, Project Manager 
 
ISSUED: November 6, 2018 
WHERE: Eastbound M-14 Barton Drive Exit Ramp and the Eastbound M-14 Barton 

Drive Entrance Ramp 
TOWNSHIP: Ann Arbor 
WHY: Guardrail Maintenance – ramps closed 
WHEN: Wednesday, November 7th 
CONTACT: Adam Lape, Superintendent of Maintenance 
 
RECEIVED: November 5, 2018 
FROM: Myra Larson 
WHY: Correspondence thanking the Road Commission for the road improvements 

on East Huron River Drive and requesting the bike path be kept clear 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

The items approved on the Consent Agenda are as follows: 

RC18-364 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded the approval of the Consent Agenda for  
November 20, 2018 as presented.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0     
ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

  

DRAFT

(2)



 
Chelsea Hometown Holiday Light Parade – Road Closure 
RC18-365 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded that upon the recommendation of the County 

Highway Engineer/Managing Director, and the concurrence of the Director of 
Engineering, the Board approves the temporary closure of the following road on 
Saturday, December 1, 2018, for the Annual Chelsea Holiday Light Parade: 

• Old US-12 from M-52 to Old Manchester Road - 5:45 p.m. to 7:45 p.m. 

Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

Dynamic Speed Display (DSD) Sign Policy 

RC18-366 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Engineering and the concurrence of the Managing Director/County Highway 
Engineer, the Board hereby adopts the “Dynamic Speed Display Sign Policy” to 
provide guidance on the usage of the Dynamic Speed Display (DSD) Signs on roads 
that are under the jurisdiction of the Washtenaw County Road Commission. Voice 
Vote:  YEAS: 3     NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

Sharon Valley Road Bridge – Construction Engineering Inspection – Amendment 1 

RC18-367 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Engineering and the concurrence of the Managing Director / County Highway 
Engineer, the Board hereby authorizes the Managing Director / County Highway 
Engineer, to amend the Wade Trim Associates Purchase Order for construction 
engineering inspection services for the Sharon Valley Road Bridge over the River 
Raisin in Section 31 of Sharon Township, increasing the total by $87,977.  The 
revised not to exceed Purchase Order amount for the project will be $163,585.   
Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3    NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

State Road Improvements – Transportation Economic Development Fund – Category A 
Grant Application 

RC18-368 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded 

WHEREAS, this Board acknowledges that State Road between US-12 (Michigan 
Avenue) and Ellsworth Road, located in Pittsfield Township, is a public road under 
the jurisdiction of the Washtenaw County Road Commission and as such all current 
and future maintenance of State Road is the responsibility of the Washtenaw 
County Road Commission; and 

WHEREAS, this Board recognizes that State Road is a designated all-season road 
and is a vital component of the commercial network which provides access to US-
12 and I-94; and 

WHEREAS, this Board recognizes that several businesses that utilize State Road 
intend to invest into existing or new facilities to create or retain jobs in high 
technology research industries; and 

DRAFT

(3)



WHEREAS, this Board acknowledges that State Road will need to be resurface 
between US-12 and Ellsworth Road to accommodate the commercial and passenger 
vehicle traffic generated by these facilities and preserve the designated all-season 
status of the roadway; and 

WHEREAS, if State Road is not resurfaced and the all-season designated status is 
revoked, the road will be subject to seasonal weight restrictions and create 
economic hardship to commercial and industrial companies during these time 
periods; and 

WHEREAS, this Board recognizes the importance of providing a reasonably safe 
and efficient road network that will accommodate existing and future traffic; and 

WHEREAS, the proposed improvements to State Road are a solution to 
accommodate the commercial and passenger vehicle traffic generated by the 
commercial developments; and 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that this Board approves the submittal of a 
Michigan Transportation Economic Development Fund - Category A grant 
application for the proposed State Road Improvements project with the 
understanding that the local match for the project will be provided by the 
Washtenaw County Road Commission. 

 Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

2019 Snow and Ice Control Abrasives Bid 

RC18-369 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Operations and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board accepts the 
low bid and second low bid for delivery prices for 2019 requirements of abrasives 
as submitted by Aggregate Industries, Inc., 822 Schuster, Kalamazoo, MI 49001, 
and Sunrise Aggregates, 2100 Swan Road, Dansville, MI 48819.  Voice Vote:  
YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

2019 Mineral Well Brine Bid 

RC18-370 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Operations and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board accepts the 
bid for 2019 requirements of mineral well brine as submitted by Chloride Solutions, 
LLC, 672 North M-52, Webberville, MI 48892.  Voice Vote: YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0     
ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

2019 Overband Crack Filling Bid 

RC18-371 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded   that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Operations and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board accepts the 
bid for the 2019 crack sealants and equipment rental bid as submitted by National 
Highway Maintenance Systems, PO Box 5315, Akron, OH 44334.  Voice Vote: 
YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

DRAFT

(4)



2019 Corrugated Steel Pipe & Bands Bid 

RC18-372 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Operations and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board accepts the 
low bid for 2019 requirements of aluminum coated corrugated steel pipe and 
connecting bands as submitted by Cadillac Culvert, Inc., 5305 Highway M-115, 
Cadillac, MI, 49601.  Voice Vote: YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  
0  Motion Carried. 

2019 22A Gravel Bid 

RC18-373 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Operations and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board accepts 
the bid for 2019 requirements of 22a gravel delivered as submitted by Stoneco, 
15203 S. Telegraph Road, Monroe, MI 48161.  Voice Vote: YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    
ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

2019 Limestone Products Bid 

RC18-374 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded that upon the recommendation of the Director 
of Operations and the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board accepts 
the low bid and second low bid for delivery prices for 2019 requirements of various 
gradations of limestone as submitted by Aggregate Industries, 822 Schuster 
Avenue, Kalamazoo, MI 49001, Farmer Underwood Trucking 7401 Rawsonville 
Road, Belleville, MI 48111, and Stoneco, 15203 S. Telegraph Road, Monroe, MI 
48161.  Voice Vote: YEAS: 3   NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion 
Carried. 

Payroll & Bills for November 14, 2018 

RC18-375 B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded the Board hereby approves Voucher 10324 
totaling $283,714.58 for payroll of November 14, 2018, and Voucher 10325 
totaling $1,510,767.57 in payment of bills for November 14, 2018.  Voice Vote:  
YEAS: 3    NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

 
  

DRAFT

(5)



REPORTS 

COUNTY COMMISSIONER REPORT 

Ruth Anne Jamnick thanked Emily for working through questions regarding West Willow 
Subdivision. 

ROAD COMMISSIONER REPORTS 

Commissioner Barb Fuller 

Commissioner Barb Fuller attended the following meetings: 

11/8     WCRC Pancake Breakfast 

11/20   Parks and Recreation Meeting 

Commissioner Doug Fuller 
 
Commissioner Doug Fuller commented that he liked the new layout at the Farm Council Grounds 
for the 2018 Pancake Breakfast.  Commissioner Fuller thanked staff for their efforts in 
coordinating the Paint a Plow program with area schools. 
 
Commissioner Rod Green 
Commissioner Rod Green attended the Roads Subcommittee Meeting on November 1st where he 
was appointed Chair of this committee.  Commissioner Green also attended the SE Council 
Meeting on Monday, November 5th along with Commissioner Doug Fuller and Sheryl Siddall, 
Managing Director. 

 
MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
TPOAM Labor Contract 
Sheryl Siddall reported that a tentative labor agreement has been reached with the TPOAM.  This 
will be brought to the Board as soon as this labor contract has been ratified. 
 
Abandonment of Scully Road 
Sheryl Siddall reported that we received the abandonment petition to abandon Scully Road.  Staff 
will schedule a Public Hearing with the required 30-days’ notice to move forward with this 
abandonment. 
 
West Willow Neighborhood 
Sheryl Siddall reported that staff met with the West Willow neighborhood representative and a 
township trustee along with MDOT staff.  The consensus was to establish a roads group within 
this neighborhood to represent the West Willow neighborhood. 
  

DRAFT

(6)



Textile Road/Woodland Drive Intersection 
Staff presented plans at the Saline City Council Working Session for the Textile Road/Woodland 
Drive intersection project.  Staff was seeking general support for this project with the City of Saline 
contributing in the funding of this project.  Construction would likely occur in 2020. 
 

Jim Harmon, Director of Operations  

• Mr. Harmon reported that the Operations Department is utilizing an online bidding process 
called “Bid Express”. 

• Paint A Plow project – Jim Harmon thanked Emily Kizer, Communications Manager and 
Lisa Jones, Customer Service Rep, for their effort in coordinating this project. 

• Mr. Harmon reported that Emily Kizer has registered the Road Commission to participate 
in several community holiday parades. 

• There are three mechanic vacancies we are actively recruiting for. 
• Jim Harmon provided a project update sheet for the remaining projects for this construction 

season. 

Matt MacDonell, Director of Engineering  

• Crews are working on site at the Sharon Valley Road bridge project. 
• Engineering staff is working towards closing out a good majority of 2018 projects and 

preparing for 2019 projects. 
• Mr. MacDonell stated that there is $2 million dollars that will be invested in road paving 

projects in 2019. 
 
Dan Ackerman, Director of Finance & IT 
 
Finance Report 

• The Finance Department has been working on the budget. 
• Tracy Balkwell is back at work after maternity leave. 
• Auditors will be on site late January/early February 2019 

 
IT Report 

The Laptops have been ordered for the foremen. 

  

DRAFT

(7)



 
 

ADJOURNMENT 

RC18-376 R. Green moved, B. Fuller seconded to adjourn the November 20, 2018 meeting at  
1:40 p.m.  Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3    NAYS: 0    ABSENT: 0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion 
Carried. 

 

  
 Douglas E. Fuller, Chair 

 

  
Sheryl Soderholm Siddall, Deputy Clerk 

Minutes Approved:  _________________________ 

DRAFT

(8)



WASHTENAW COUNTY BOARD OF ROAD COMMISSIONERS 
WORKING SESSION MINUTES OF 

November 20, 2018 

Present: Road Commissioners Douglas E. Fuller, Barbara Fuller, Rodrick Green 

Staff Present: S. Siddall, J. Harmon, D. Ackerman, M. MacDonell, C. Ryan, B. Schlack,
M. Livsey

Others Present: R. Jamnick

2018 YEAR END BUDGET 

Michigan Transportation Fund Receipts 

It is anticipated that the annual MTF receipts will be $26,000,000.  Dan Ackerman explained that the MTF 
can fluctuate quite a bit. 

Federal/State Funds 

Federal/State revenues will be lower than anticipated because of various carryover projects.  This category 
also includes the $3,300,000 PA 207 funds that will be spent in 2019. 

State Trunkline Maintenance 

The revenues received for the State Trunkline contract are anticipated to be lower than budgeted. 

Township Contributions 

Township contributions are lower than budgeted due to lower costs for township matching and culvert 
replacement project. 

Other Contributions 

Other contributions are lower than budgeted due to the carryover into 2019 of the Huron River Trail – B2B, 
Huron Waterloo Trail and Chelsea Path. 

Miscellaneous Income 

The Other Category includes revenues from various equipment auctions.  The overall revenues were higher 
due to an increase in permit/subdivision activities. 

DRAFT

(9)



 

EXPENDITURES 

Operations 

Overall anticipated expenditures are higher than budgeted due primarily to higher overtime costs as well 
as other material costs.  Limestone costs were higher due to additional work on the gravel roads. 

Non-Departmental 

Liability Insurance costs are lower than budgeted due to a refund.  Health insurance costs were lower than 
budgeted due to positive trends in 2018. 

Debt Service 

All expenditures are anticipated to be as budgeted in this category.  The two installment purchases from 
2013 were paid off in 2018.  There were two new installment purchases in 2018. 

Reimbursable Road Projects, Capital Improvements and State Trunkline Expenditures 

Contractual Services are below budget levels due to carryover of various federal aid projects.  Traffic 
control supplies are lower due to a carryover of a project into 2019. 

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES 

Dan Ackerman provided a review of Departmental Expenditures. 

The 2018 Projected Fund Balance is $14,847,000 

2019 PRELIMINARY BUDGET 

Michigan Transportation Fund 

The Road Commission is anticipating a small increase to MTF revenues in 2019.  This will be monitored 
closely through the year. 

Federal Aid Projects 

Matt MacDonell, Director of Engineering, provided a review of the 2019 Federal Aid Projects.  The 
significant projects are Huron River Trail – B2B, Huron Waterloo Trail, Phase 1b, and Carpenter Road, 
Ellsworth – Packard.  The timing of the construction could have significant impacts on Federal/State 
Revenues as well as the local match if the projected level of completion varies from the actual level by 
year-end. 

 

 

 

DRAFT

(10)



 

Non-Federal Aid Projects - Engineering 

Matt MacDonell, Director of Engineering, provided a review of the Engineering non-federal aid projects. 

Non-Federal Aid Projects - Operations 

Jim Harmon, Director of Operations, provided a review of the Operations non-federal aid projects. 

State Trunkline Maintenance 

The State Trunkline Maintenance budget reflects the FY-2019 contract budget authorized by the Michigan 
Department of Transportation (MDOT).  There is also a transportation work authorization (TWA) for costs 
on the Chelsea Non-motorized path. 

Township Contributions 

Township contributions are anticipated to increase in 2019.  The Matching Project is the same as in 2018 
due to the addition of a portion of the PA 207 funds.  Additional contributions are expected from Ypsilanti 
Township for bond reimbursement as well as Salem Township for Chubb Road.  Also included are 
contributions from townships for various culvert projects. 

Other Contributions 

Other contributions are anticipated to increase in 2019.  A County Wide Millage was approved by voters 
in 2016 and $3,500,000 of work is anticipated to be completed in 2019.  Contributions are anticipated from 
Washtenaw County Parks for the Huron River Trail – border to border, as well as the Huron Waterloo Trail 
and the Chelsea Path. 

Miscellaneous Income 

Interest Income is projected to be at 2018 levels in 2019.  Permit/Subdivision activities are expected to be 
lower than 2018 levels.  An installment purchase agreement for 4 heavy trucks is anticipated. 

DEPARTMENTAL EXPENDITURES 

Dan Ackerman provided a review of the departmental budgets. 

The projected 2019 Fund Balance is $10,833,000. 

  

DRAFT

(11)



 

Equipment Update 

Jim Harmon, Director of Operations, provided a review of the staff vacancies in the Operations 
Department.   

Jim Harmon also provided a review of WCRC equipment.  Mr. Harmon stated that there is consideration 
on how long we should keep depreciating equipment. 

The current overdue equipment cost is $13,890,000. 

There are 57 Heavy Trucks.  The replacement schedule is 180 months or 100,000 miles.  The average age 
for a heavy truck is 119 months.  There are 26 heavy trucks overdue for replacement at $278,000/each.  
The overdue replacement cost is $7,228,000.  The average age of heavy trucks is increasing. 

There are 11 Graders.  The replacement schedule is 144 months or 12,000 hours.  The overdue replacement 
is cost is $562,000. 

There are 7 Loaders.  The replacement schedule is 180 months or 9,000 hours.  The overdue replacement 
cost is $855,000. 

There are eight 1-ton trucks.  The replacement schedule is 96 months or 100,000 miles.  The overdue 
replacement cost is $180,000. 

The Road Commission deploys 6 Aerial Lift Trucks.  The average age is 125 months.  A new signal truck 
will be delivered in the spring of 2019.  There are three trucks due for replacement at a total cost of 
$675,000. 

The Road Commission presently owns 6 wood chippers.  The replacement schedule is 120 month or 2,000 
hours.  All wood chippers are overdue for replacement.  The cost for 8 wood chippers is $440,000. 

There are 56 pickup trucks.  The replacement schedule is 120 months or 100,000 miles.  The average age 
is 80 months and average mileage is 98,056.  There are 27 pickup trucks that are overdue for replacement 
at total cost of $750,000. 

The proposed FY19 equipment budget is $1,900,000. 

• $224,133 carryover from FY18 for the new signal truck 
• $1,112,854 for the 4 heavy trucks approved October 16, 2018 
• $563,013 remains for road equipment purchases 

 
The proposed FY19 Purchase Authorization is $563,013 with $2,326,000 for additional consideration if 
the budget allows. 

  

DRAFT

(12)



 

ADJOURNMENT 

B. Fuller moved, R. Green seconded to adjourn the November 20, 2018 Working Session at 11:39 a.m.    
Voice Vote:  YEAS: 3    NAYS: 0    ABSENT:  0    ABSTAIN:  0  Motion Carried. 

 

  
 _____________________________________________________ 
 Douglas E. Fuller, Chair 
 Washtenaw County Board of Road Commissioners 
 

 _____________________________________________________
 Barb Fuller, Vice-Chair 
 Washtenaw County board of Road Commissioners  

 

 

DRAFT

(13)



 

 
COMMISSIONERS 

 

DOUGLAS E. FULLER 
CHAIR 

 
BARBARA RYAN FULLER 

VICE-CHAIR 
 

RODRICK K. GREEN 
MEMBER 

 

 
WASHTENAW COUNTY 

BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 
555 NORTH ZEEB ROAD 

ANN ARBOR, MICHIGAN 48103 
WWW.WCROADS.ORG 

TELEPHONE (734) 761-1500 
FAX (734) 761-3737 

SHERYL SODERHOLM SIDDALL, P.E. 
MANAGING DIRECTOR 

COUNTY HIGHWAY ENGINEER 
 

MATTHEW F. MACDONELL, P.E. 
DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING 

 
JAMES D. HARMON, P.E. 
DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS 

 
DANIEL D. ACKERMAN 

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & IT 
 

TO: Washtenaw County Board of Road Commissioners 
FROM: Sheryl Soderholm Siddall, Managing Director 

DATE: December 4, 2018 

SUBJECT:  Written Communications for December 4, 2018 Board Meeting 
 
WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS 
 
ISSUED: November 29, 2018 
WHERE: Textile Road between State Road and Michigan Avenue (US-12) 
TOWNSHIP: Pittsfield 
WHY: Project partially completed 
WHEN: Wednesday, November 28, 2018 
CONTACT: Mark McCulloch, Sr. Project Manager 
 
RECEIVED: November 29, 2018 
FROM: Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) 
WHY: MDOT Local Bridge Advisory Board approval of bridges for the Local  

Bridge Program 
CONTACT: Aaron Berkholz, Sr. Project Manager 
 
ISSUED: November 28, 2018 
WHERE: Saline-Milan Road Bridge over the Koch Warner Drain on Saline-Milan  
 Road near border of City of Saline 
TOWNSHIP: York 
WHY: Project Announcement for Bridge replacement 
WHEN: Summer and Fall of 2019 
CONTACT: Aaron Berkholz, Sr. Project Manager 
 
ISSUED: November 21, 2018 
WHERE: Ellsworth Road between Carpenter Road and Golfside Road 
TOWNSHIP: Pittsfield 
WHY: Corrective work 
WHEN: Tuesday, November 27th 
CONTACT: Aaron Berkholz, Sr. Project Manager 
 

(14)

http://www.wcroads.org/


(15)



(16)



(17)



(18)



(19)



(20)



(21)



(22)



(23)



(24)



(25)



 

 
COMMISSIONERS 

 

DOUGLAS E. FULLER 
CHAIR 

 
BARBARA RYAN FULLER 

VICE-CHAIR 
 

RODRICK K. GREEN 
MEMBER 

 

 
WASHTENAW COUNTY 

BOARD OF COUNTY ROAD COMMISSIONERS 
555 NORTH ZEEB ROAD 

ANN ARBOR, MICHIGAN 48103 
WWW.WCROADS.ORG 

TELEPHONE (734) 761-1500 
FAX (734) 761-3737 

SHERYL SODERHOLM SIDDALL, P.E. 
MANAGING DIRECTOR 

COUNTY HIGHWAY ENGINEER 
 

MATTHEW F. MACDONELL, P.E. 
DIRECTOR OF ENGINEERING 

 
JAMES D. HARMON, P.E. 
DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS 

 
DANIEL D. ACKERMAN 

DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & IT 
 

MEMO TO: Washtenaw County Board of County Road Commissioners 

THROUGH: Sheryl Soderholm Siddall, P.E. 
 Managing Director 

DATE: December 4, 2018 

SUBJECT:  NEW BUSINESS ITEMS FOR DECEMBER 4, 2018 BOARD MEETING 

A. CONSENT ITEMS 

1. Road Commission – 2018 Final Budget Amendments 

Staff is requesting the Board to approve the 2018 Final Budget Adjustments.  At a Board 
Working Session on November 20, 2018, the Board reviewed the fiscal situation of the Road 
Commission.  Staff is recommending the adjustments to the 2018 Budget as discussed at the 
Working Session.   

PROPOSED MOTION:  that upon the recommendation of the Director of Finance and 
the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby approves the 2018 year-
end budget as presented. 

2. Payroll & Bills for November 28, 2018 

Staff is requesting the Board to approve the payment of payroll and bills for November 28, 
2018. 

PROPOSED MOTION:  the Board hereby approves Voucher 10326 totaling $313,483.93 
for payroll of November 14, 2018, and Voucher 10327 totaling $914,447.91 in payment 
of bills for November 14, 2018. 

  

(26)

http://www.wcroads.org/


 

 

B. ACTION ITEM 

1. Road Commission 2019 Annual Budget 

Staff is requesting the Board to approve the 2019 Budget.  At a Board Working Session on 
November 20, 2018, the Board reviewed the fiscal situation of the Road Commission.  Staff 
is recommending approving the 2019 Budget as discussed at the Working Session.  The 
proposed 2019 Budget reflects a $4,014,000 decrease to the fund balance resulting in a 
projected year-end fund balance of $10,833,000. 

PROPOSED MOTION:  that upon the recommendation of the Director of Finance and 
the concurrence of the Managing Director, the Board hereby approves the Road 
Commission 2019 Annual Budget as presented.  It is understood that the proposed 
2019 budget supports 134 full-time equivalent positions. 

 

(27)



(28)



(29)



(30)



(31)



(32)



(33)



(34)



(35)



(36)



(37)



(38)



(39)



(40)



(41)



(42)



(43)



(44)



(45)



(46)



(47)



(48)



(49)



(50)



(51)



(52)



(53)



(54)



(55)



(56)



(57)



(58)



 
 

WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION 

TOWNSHIP/STAFF REPORT – November 6, 2018 

For the period of November 12, 2018 thru November 25, 2018 

 
 

TOWNSHIP REPORT 
 
OPERATIONS REPORT 

MAINTENANCE 

Scraping of gravel roads and patching of paved roads were performed throughout the 
county. In addition, the following maintenance activities were performed in individual 
townships:   
 
ANN ARBOR TOWNSHIP 
 Limestone Patch – Earhart Road: 34 tons 

 
AUGUSTA TOWNSHIP 
 Canopy Clearing – Butler Road 
 Drainage and Backslopes – Willow Road 
 McCrone Road Limestone Resurfacing Project – 5,789 tons 

 
BRIDGEWATER TOWNSHIP 
 McCollum Road Limestone Resurfacing Project – 5,504 tons 

 
DEXTER TOWNSHIP 
 Drainage and Backslopes – Dexter-Pinckney Road 
 Gravel Patch – Dexter Townhall Road, Toma Road: 31 tons 
 Limestone Patch – Brand Road, Island Lake Road, Madden Road, Toma Road, 

Winston Road: 27 tons 
 
FREEDOM TOWNSHIP 
 Limestone Patch – Parker Road: 20 tons  

 
LIMA TOWNSHIP 
 Boom Mow –  Wylie Road, Scio Church Road 
 Border-to-Border City of Chelsea to Lima Center Road Pathway – Tree Removal 
 Ditching – N Lima Center Road 
 Drainage and Backslopes – Steinbach Road 
 Limestone Patch – Fletcher Road, Gross Road, S Lima Center Road,  

N Steinbach Road: 32 tons 
  

 

(59)



 
 
LODI TOWNSHIP 
 Fallen Tree – Brian Glenn Drive 
 Limestone Patch – Waters Road: 15 tons 
 Limestone Patch Shoulders – Ann Arbor-Saline Road: 2 tons 

 
LYNDON TOWNSHIP 
 Gravel Patch – Bowdish Road, Joslin Lake Road: 9 tons 
 Limestone Patch – Roepke Road: 30 tons 

 
MANCHESTER TOWNSHIP 
 Drainage and Backslopes – Grossman Road, Mull Road 

 
NORTHFIELD TOWNSHIP 
 Limestone Patch – Earhart Road, Eight Mile Road, Five Mile Road,  

Jennings Road, Joy Road, Nollar Road, Northfield Church Road, Rushton Road: 
255 tons 

 Limestone Patch Shoulders – Six Mile Road, N Territorial Road: 15 tons 
 
PITTSFIELD TOWNSHIP 
 Cut Brush – Platt Road 
 Drainage and Backslopes – Rosefield Drive 
 Fallen Trees – Campbell Road 
 Roadside Debris – S State Road 
 Limestone Patch – Morgan Road, Stone School Road: 63 tons 

 
SALEM TOWNSHIP 
 Cut Trees – Brookville Road 
 Fallen Trees – Curtis Road, Seven Mile Road 
 Limestone Patch – Dixboro Road, Five Mile Road, Napier Road: 85 tons 

 
SALINE TOWNSHIP 
 Berming – Case Road 
 Culvert Replacement – Case Road 
 Ditching – Macon Road 
 Limestone Patch – Arkona Road, Mooreville Road: 120 tons 

 
SCIO TOWNSHIP 
 Boom Mow – Liberty Road 
 Limestone Patch Shoulders – Miller Road, Parker Road, Zeeb Road: 4 tons 

 
SHARON TOWNSHIP 
 Gravel Patch – Below Road: 6 tons 
 Limestone Patch – Below Road, Bethel Church Road: 16 tons 

 
  

(60)



 
 
SUPERIOR TOWNSHIP 
 Brush Removal – Leforge Road, N Prospect Road 
 Limestone Patch – Albert Drive, Gotfredson Road, Hickman Road, Leforge Road, 

Stommel Road, Vreeland Road: 19 tons 
 Local Road Dust Control 

 
WEBSTER TOWNSHIP 
 Limestone Patch Shoulders – Mast Road: 2 tons 

 
YORK TOWNSHIP 
 Ditching – Maple Road, Willow Road 
 HMA Resurfacing – Moon Road 
 Limestone Patch – Mooreville Road, Petersburg Road: 70 tons 
 Shoulder Placement – Platt Road 

 
YPSILANTI TOWNSHIP 
 ADA Ramp Installation – Gates Avenue, Tyler Road, Parkwood Avenue, 

Hawthorne Avenue 
 Brush Removal – Allen Avenue, Jerome Avenue 
 Limestone Patch – Ellis Road, Morgan Road: 42 tons 
 HMA Resurfacing – The Pines Subdivision 
 Roadside Debris – Coolidge Road, Martz Road, Merritt Road, Rawsonville Road 

 
WINTER MAINTENANCE 
 Crews Responded – 6 times 
 Total Salt Used – 1,737 tons 
 Total Abrasives Used – 55 tons 
 Total Brine Used – 2,820 gallons 

 
NESC REPORT 
Warranty work and additional equipment installation by contractors is on-going.  
 
SHOP REPORT 
Shop Repairs 
 Tires Repaired – 4 tires 
 New Tire Installation – 20 
 Vehicles Serviced – 1 
 Vehicles Serviced by Suburban Chevrolet – 10 
 Work Orders Completed – 38 

 
  

(61)



 
 
Equipment Repair 
Note: Performed several hydraulic repairs 
 Grader 464 – Replaced the console wiring harness 
 Grader 476 – Replaced the turbo, bent steps and broken lights 
 Roller 1093 – Replaced the park brake shoes and repaired the shifter 
 Scraper 358 – Refurbished and installed on truck 374 
 Truck 370 – Replaced the starter 
 Truck 381 – Replaced an injector, rear air bag and repaired the flight chain 

 
BUILDING & GROUNDS REPORT 
Yard One 
 Painted walls, installed new ceiling tiles, installed new ceiling fan, and stripped and 

waxed floor in Foreman’s office 
 Winter maintenance 
 Cleaned parking garage floors 
 Installed new stove for office lunchroom 
 Rodent control 

 
Yard Two 
 Repaired lights 
 Repairs to rapid unit 
 Repaired bathroom sink 

 
Yard Four 
 Replaced filter in drinking fountain 

 
Yard Six 
 Installed signage 
 Repaired DEF dispenser 
 Repairs to brine system 

 
 
FINANCE REPORT 
 
FEDERAL AID 
 Federal aid information and final accountings were processed. 

 
SAD 
 Numerous questions were answered regarding SAD payoffs. 
 Various SAD payoffs were received. 
 Revised a few 2018 winter tax rolls to reflect some last minute payoffs.  The 

updated information was also provided to the county. 
 

  

(62)



 
BUDGET 
 Completed the 2018 year-end as well as 2019 budgets.  All related documents 

were updated. 
 Additional staff meetings were held. 
 A working session with the Board took place to discuss the budgets. 

 
MISCELLANEOUS MONTH END ACCOUNTING 
 The October outstanding check listing, cash and bank reconciliation was 

prepared. 
 All October journal entries were prepared and posted. 
 The books were closed through October. 

 
STATE TRUNKLINE 
  All files were finalized, reconciled and archived for the 17_18 contract year. 
 The 18_19 budget was setup in the system. 
 The 2017 state trunkline audit was initiated.  A majority of the information that 

was requested was provided via a SharePoint site.   
 

COUNTY MILLAGE 
 Submitted and received payment for the 5th and final warrant for the 2018 county 

millage. 
 

MISCELLANEOUS INVOICING 
 Invoices were prepared to:  4 traffic calming invoices to various townships, a 

majority of the final township billings and 2 invoices to County Parks for the 
Huron Waterloo Loop.  

 
MISCELLANEOUS 

 Working on providing information to Gabriel, Roeder, Smith and Company to 
comply with GASB 75 as it related to the reporting of OPEB liabilities. 

 Prepared and submitted the 2019_20 payroll estimates for the County Road 
Association Self Insurance Fund (CRASIF). 

 The Road Commission’s Flexible Spending Account plan was renewed for 2019. 
 The final debt service schedule for the 5 new tractors was received.     
 Assisted the stockroom with the physical inventory of guardrail. 
 Prepared journal entries for various adjustments to township project job numbers. 

 

IT REPORT 

Help Desk 
 Staff received 134 new tickets and closed 142.   

 
Network Redesign 
 Looking at migrating all SQL databases to one database in 2019.   

  

(63)



 
 
Computer Replacements 
 Staff continued to work on a PC replacement program.  This includes standardizing 

laptops and desk tops to meet the organizational needs.  The goal is to have a 
consistent number of updates on an annual basis.  The budget will be able to 
support this.  Within a few years, computers will be replaced shortly after the  
3 year warranty is expired.   

 All budgeted 2018 computer PC replacements were completed except for one 
employee.   

 
Traffic & Safety Network Upgrade 
 Staff has obtained and is configuring the mini desktop for the digital signage that 

is eligible through the grant.   The TV has arrived. Working on mounting it at the 
SESC.  After the TV is mounted, IT will setup the mini desktop with the 30-day trial 
of the Digital Signage software.  The goal is to have a better way to communicate 
with all yards.   A meeting is scheduled for 12/6.   

 
Stormwater, Asset Management, and Wastewater (SAW) Grant 
 Staff continues to work with the Operations Departments on determining the 

specifications for ordering laptops that are eligible for the grant.  After a month of 
testing, laptops were ordered for the foremen.  These will be received in 4-8 weeks.  
Monitors are backordered until the beginning of December.  Most of the 
Engineering laptops have been received. Waiting to deploy until the monitors are 
received. 

 
Cell Phones 
 All new work cell phones have been replaced.  
 2 additional phones were ordered. 

 
Outside Yards 
 Working on slow internet connection speeds at Southeast Service Center. 
 A Cat-6 cable was run at the SESC to the break room to be used for the Digital 

Signage equipment. 
 Visited the SESC and troubleshooted network issues on 2 kiosks.   

 
Miscellaneous  
 The Systems Administrator continues to develop a master document of all software 

and hardware.  This includes how to troubleshoot as well as install and remove 
programs.   

 Dominant Systems installed the free express version of SQL 2016 for Roadsoft.  
This as well as a new Roadsoft update install seems to have resolved some issues 
with the software. 

 An update to Michigan Engineers’ Resource Library (MERL) is needed prior to the 
end of 2018.   

 Staff has rolled out a password manager called TeamPass.   
 An issue with accidently deleted permits in the Precision module was fixed. 

 
 

(64)



 Working on issuing a ticket for new hires in order to have all IT items set up prior
to the new employee’s first day.  After the request is received from the supervisor
the IT Department will have everything setup within 3 business days.

 2 Adobe Pro licenses were purchased as well as an Office 365 license.
 There was an internet outage at all of the service centers on 11/1.  This was due

to a Comcast outage and was restored at 8am.
 Working on cleaning up the X & W drives.
 Lansweeper (PC management system) has an expiring license.
 The Duo 2 factor authentication license is expiring and will need to be renewed.
 Several staff accounts were corrected in the Outlook Address Book to drop a

preceding “1” in their phone number (i.e. 1-734-327-6699 goes to 734-327-6699).
Foreman extensions also dropped the preceding “Ext.” (i.e. Ext. 604 goes to 604).
These were causing issues in the Avaya plugin for Outlook.

 Ordered a computer for a new hire in Engineering.
 Replaced a kiosk desktop with a newer internal desktop that became available as

a result of the 2018 pc replacements.

Staff set up and is utilizing MS Office 365 SharePoint for the 2017 state trunkline.  This 
allows sharing of large files without having to overburden email.  It also sends alerts to 
MDOT every time a new file is uploaded. 

HR REPORT 

Benefits 
• An enhanced dental option was added to the non-union 2019 benefit package.

Staff/Hiring Update 
• Adam Dusseau resigned with a last day of November 7th.
• Nate Murphy starts as a Civil Engineer IV on December 3rd.
• Jared Powers was promoted to Engineering Technician I on November 5th.
• Shayne Mickels started as a Heavy Truck Driver at District 2 on November 5th.
• Warren Copple transferred to Assistant Stock Clerk on November 5th.

Robert Keene transferred to District 2 effective November 5th. Tom Forner
transferred to District 4 effective November 19th.

• Scott Burby became Group Leader I for District I effective November 5th.
• Staff is recruiting for Mechanics, Heavy Truck Drivers, a Civil Engineer and an

Engineering Technician in Construction.

(65)



Misc. HR 
• Negotiations with TPOAM occurred on November 15, 2018.  A tentative agreement

was reached.
• A Step II grievance meeting was help with TPOAM on November 21st.
• One TPOAM employee is out on workers compensation and one TPOAM employee

is out on short-term disability.

MEETINGS ATTENDED 

11/15 The monthly Safety Committee meeting was held in the Assembly Room 

11/16 The monthly Supervisors meeting was held in the Assembly Room 

(66)



(67)


	2018Minutes_112018
	Working SessionMinutes112018
	Written Comm_cover
	Written Comm_backup
	Consent Agenda - cover - 120418
	Consent agenda backup_1
	Consent agenda backup_2
	Staff Rpt_11-12 to 11-25-18
	WASHTENAW COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION
	TOWNSHIP REPORT

	MTF



